




- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

October 24, 2023 
 

CALENDAR 
 

Oct 24 5:30 p.m. Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Oct 24 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Nov 14 6:00 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Nov 14 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

 

******************* 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. THE ELKHART PROMISE  
 

C. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 

 
D. MOMENT OF PRIDE  

 

E. CONSENT ITEMS: 
 

Minutes – October 10, 2023 – Public Work Session  
Minutes – October 10, 2023 – Regular Board Meeting 
Claims 

Fundraisers 
Gift Acceptances    
Conference Leaves  

Overnight Trips   
Grants  
Personnel Report 

Employment 
 

F. NEW BUSINESS 

 
 Agreement for Services – The Administration recommends Board approval of an 

agreement for branding, positioning and marketing services. 

 
 License Agreement – The Administration recommends Board approval of a license 

agreement with ULEAD for the Servant Leadership class at Elkhart High School. 

 
 Administrative Regulation DLC – Expense Reimbursements – The Administration 

presents proposed revisions to Administrative Regulation DLC – Expense 

Reimbursements for initial review. 



BOARD AGENDA October 24, 2023 
 
 

2 
 

  

 2024 Budget Adoption – The Business Office recommends Board approval of the 
proposed 2024 Budget, 2024 Capital Projects Fund Plan, and 2024 School Bus 

Replacement Plan, and other required budget resolutions. 
 

 Financial Report – September 2023 

 
 Insurance Update 

 

G. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 
 

 From Audience 

 
 From Superintendent and Staff 

 

 From Board 
 

H. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

October 10, 2023 
 

J.C. Rice Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart 46514 – at 

6:33 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Dacey S. Davis Mike Burnett 

Present: Troy E. Scott Kellie L. Mullins 

 Douglas K. Weaver Anne M. VonDerVellen 

   

Absent:  Jeffrey S. Bliler 

   

ECS Staff Mark Mow Siesha Gary 

Present: Lindsey Brander Kim Varga 

 Jamie Presswood 

   
 

Roll Call 

The Board was presented information about Elkhart Community Schools’ 
Bullying Prevention efforts. 

Topics 
Discussed 
 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:59 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Dacey S. Davis, President 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Troy E. Scott, Vice President 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 

 
 
                  
______________________________ 
Jeffrey S. Bliler, Member 
 
 
______________________________ 
Mike Burnett, Member 
 
 
______________________________ 
Kellie L. Mullins, Member 
 
 
______________________________ 
Anne M. VonDerVellen, Member 
 

  
 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES 

OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

October 10, 2023 
 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart 
– at 7:09 p.m. 

 

Place/Time 

 

Board Members Dacey S. Davis Mike Burnett 
Present: Troy E. Scott Kellie L. Mullins 

 Douglas K. Weaver Anne M. VonDerVellen 
   

Absent:  Jeffrey S. Bliler 
   

 

Roll Call 

Board President Dacey Davis called the regular meeting of the Board 
of School Trustees to order. 
 

Call to 
Order 

Board Secretary Doug Weaver recited the Elkhart Promise. 
 

The Elkhart 
Promise 

Ms. Davis discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 
 

 

During the Moment of Pride, Barb Cripe, Director of Elementary 
Instruction, celebrated the following third grade students who earned 

a perfect IREAD score and presented them with a certificate.   
 

o Liam Botello, Riverview 

o Callie Clair, Cleveland 
o Otilia Galindo, Cleveland 

o Eli Garcia, Mary Daly 
o Ava Miller, Mary Daly 
o Noah Parkinson, Roosevelt 

o Oscar Patrick, Roosevelt 
o Anailys Rosario Mercado, Riverview 

o Miracle Smith, Roosevelt 
o Aubree Waterman, Eastwood 
o Mackenzie Weaver, Monger 

o Mary Weidner, Roosevelt 
 

All Board members shook hands with the students and congratulated 
them on a job well done.  Ms. Davis told the students it was wonderful 
to see Elkhart Community Schools’ (ECS) students doing great 

things. 

The Elkhart 
Promise 

 



2 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following consent 
items: 

 

Consent Items 

Minutes – September 26, 2023 – Board Work Session  

Minutes – September 26, 2023 – Regular Board Meeting 
 

Minutes 

Payment of claims totaling $9,714,755.21 as shown on the 

October 10, 2023, claims listing.  (Codified File 2324-045) 
 

Payment of 

Claims 

Proposed school fundraisers in accordance with Board policy. 
(Codified File 2324-046) 
 

Fundraisers 

Accepted the following extra-curricular purchase requests:  
West Side Extra-Curricular Vocal, Band, and Orchestra 

Account to purchase transportation for the West Side music 
students’ Cedar Point trip totaling $7,986. 
 

Extra-Curricular 
Purchase 

 

The following donations were made to Elkhart Community 
Schools (ECS):  $150 from Bring Change 2 Mind to Pierre 

Moran to assist with the cost of student rewards for Bring 
Change 2 Mind student groups; $500 from Legacy Heating and 

Air, Inc. to Pierre Moran to assist with the cost of student 
rewards and events; fifty-five (55) half sheet drapes, five (5) 
robotics lithotomy drapes, and four (4) Jackson Pratt drains 

from Unity Physicians Hospital, care of Jennifer Medich, to be 
used in the Surgical Services program at the Elkhart Area 

Career Center (EACC); 2002 Oldsmobile Intrigue GX, VIN# 
1G3WH52H22F124595, from Gary and Mary Williams to the 
EACC to be used for training purposes in the Automotive 

Technology program; 2008 Subaru Forester, VIN# 
JF1SG636X8H730511, from William Hartley to the EACC to be 

used for training purposes in the Automotive Technology 
program; $700 from Bradley and Kellie Fishburn to the Michele 
Hostetler Memorial Scholarship fund to help students in the 

Automotive Technology program further their education in the 
automotive field; $1,100 from Brian and Melinda Inniger to 

the Michele Hostetler Memorial Scholarship fund to help 
students in the Automotive Technology program further their 
education in the automotive field; $2,500 from Welch 

Packaging Group, Inc., care of Scott Welch and Family, to 
Pierre Moran to assist with the cost of student rewards and 

events; and 800 backpacks and supplies from WNDU, care of 
Michael Fowler, to ECS for students. 
 

Gift Acceptances 

Conference leave requests in accordance with Board policy for 
staff members as recommended by the administration on the 

October 10, 2023 listings.  (Codified File 2324-047) 
 

Conference 
Leave Requests 



3 
 

Submission of the following grant: CFEC Grant hosted by the 
Community Foundation of Elkhart County in the amount of 

$2,000 – $2,500 to help support a district-wide 21st Century 
Scholarship Night and Community Expo at Pierre Moran. 

(Codified File 2324-048) 
 

Grant 

 

 
One (1) agreement for services.  (Codified File 2324-049) 

 
 
Employment of the following one (1) certified staff effective 

on dates indicated: 
Ashley Schuman – Special Education at Bristol, 10/3/23 

 
Resignation of the following one (1) certified staff member, 
effective on date indicated: 

Jonathan LeVan – Principal at Woodland, 11/9/23 
 

Employment of the following thirty-eight (38) classified 
employees effective on dates indicated: 

Zienab Abas – Registered Behavior Technician at 
Eastwood, 10/9/23 

Olga Aceves – Food Service at Elkhart High, 10/9/23 

Yankho Bassa – Paraprofessional at Roosevelt, 
10/10/23 

Anna Brown – Food Service at Pinewood, 10/10/23 
Sydney Brown – Technical Assistant at Beck, 10/9/23 
David Cassell – Paraprofessional at Elkhart High, 

10/10/23 
Amanda Christensen – Paraprofessional at Cleveland, 

10/10/23 
Tabitha DeWitt – Food Service at Eastwood, 10/10/23 
Lili Eash – Registered Behavior Technician at Pierre 

Moran, 10/9/23 
Kelly Engle – Technical Assistant at Cleveland, 10/9/23 

Nathalie Estrada – Food Service at Eastwood, 10/10/23 
Denise Finn – Bus Driver at Transportation, 10/2/23 
Karen Howard – Registered Nurse at Elkhart High, 

10/3/23 
DeJanea Johnson – Behavior Support at Roosevelt, 

10/10/23 
Margaret Johnson – Registered Behavior Technician at 

Beck, 10/10/23 

Lisa Jones – Therapist at PACE, 10/10/23 
Amy Knoll – Technical Assistant at Riverview, 10/9/23 

Michele Kovatch – Paraprofessional at Monger, 
10/10/23 

Personnel Report 

 
Service 

Agreement 
 
Certified 

Employment 
 

 
Certified 
Resignation 

 
 

Classified 
Employment 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 



4 

Cori Ledden-Edmisten – Technical Assistant at Feeser, 
10/9/23 

Lorie Lee – Food Service at Roosevelt, 10/9/23 
Kelsy Manley – Technical Assistant at Beardsley, 

10/9/23 
Mercedes Mayweathers Brown – Food Service at North 

Side, 10/9/23 

Alicia Mendez – Parent/Community Liaison at 
Roosevelt, 10/9/23 

Glen Miller – Bus Driver at Transportation, 10/2/23 
Haley Morse – Therapist at Pierre Moran, 9/14/23 
Margie Nisley – Paraprofessional at Roosevelt, 10/10/23 
Chelsea Penninger – Technical Assistant at EACC, 

10/2/23 

Bridget Petersheim – Registered Behavior Technician at 
PRIDE, 10/9/23 

Kelsey Rockstroh – Registered Nurse at Daly, 10/9/23 
Rebecca Rohrer – Paraprofessional at Osolo, 10/10/23 
Margo Ross – Paraprofessional at Cleveland, 10/10/23 
Katie Sandefur – Paraprofessional at EACC, 10/9/23 
Kathleen Seymour – Food Service at Freshman Division, 

10/2/23 
Teri Shreiner – Paraprofessional at Eastwood, 10/10/23 
Danielle Smith – Paraprofessional at West Side, 

10/10/23 
Laura Solis – Food Service at Monger, 10/9/23 
Jean Wesolowski – Food Service at Elkhart High, 

10/9/23 
Sarah Young – Food Service at Osolo, 10/9/23 

Retirement of the following three (3) classified employees. 

Effective pm dates indicated: 
Lamont Donathen, Jr. – Head Custodian at West Side, 

10/4/23 with 23 years of service 

Michele Habic – Secretary at Woodland, 11/10/23 
with 23 years of service 

David Paulson – Head Custodian at Building Services, 
10/23/23 with 37 years of service 

Unpaid leave for the following two (2) classified employees, 
effective on dates indicated: 

James Neal – Food Service at Pierre Moran, beginning 
9/18/23 and ending 9/27/23 

Miranda Quinn – Food Service at North Side, beginning 

 9/25/23 and ending 10/24/23 

Classified 

Retirements 

Classified 
Leaves 



5 
 

Resignation of the following two (2) classified employees, 
effective on dates indicated: 

Sara Paholak – Paraprofessional at Feeser, 5/25/23 
Kevin Scott – Chief Financial Officer at ESC, 3/29/24 

 

Classified 
Resignations 

Ms. Davis suspended the regular meeting and opened the 1028 
public hearing on the Issuance of Bonds for the purpose of providing 

funds to pay for the renovation, expansion and update of both the 
Main Building and North Annex Buildings of the Elkhart Area Career 

Center (EACC) as well as two (2) Appropriation Resolutions 
authorizing use of the said bond proceeds.  Kevin Scott, Chief 
Financial Officer, provided a brief overview of the construction 

projects and informed Board Members we plan to have a five (5) year 
payoff of the bonds.  A copy of the layout/footprint of the 

construction was provided to the Board by Tony Gianesi.  Following 
comments or questions from the Board, and no further comments 
from the audience, the 1028 hearing was closed. 

 

Public Hearing 
 

Ms. Davis opened and held a public hearing on the 2024 Budget, 

2024 Capital Projects Plan and 2024 School Bus Replacement Plan 
as presented by Mr. Scott during the September 26, 2023 Public 

Work Session.  With no comments from the audience, the hearing 
was closed. 
 

Public Hearing 

By unanimous action, the Board approved two (2) Resolutions 
Authorizing the Issuance of Bonds for the Purpose of Providing Funds 

to Pay for Renovation, Expansion, and Update of the EACC Main 
Building and for Renovations, Expansion, and Update Projects at the 
EACC North Annex.   (Codified File 2324-050) 

  

Resolutions 

By unanimous action, the Board approved two (2) Appropriation 

Resolutions for the use of bond proceeds for renovation, expansion, 
and update of the EACC Main Building and the EACC North Annex 
Projects. (Codified File 2324-051) 

 

Resolutions 

Doug Thorne, District Counsel/Chief of Staff, presented proposed 

revisions to Administrative Regulation DLC – Conference Leave 
Request form and asked them to waive second review.  Mr. Thorne 
further explained, during the October 24, 2023 Board meeting, he will 

be presenting proposed revisions to the corresponding Administrative 
Regulation DLC – Expense Reimbursement, which outlines a new 

process and timeline for getting conference leaves approved. 
 

Administrative 

Regulation DLC 
 

An audience member expressed concerns about suicide prevention 

resources available outside of the school day. 
 

From the 

Audience 

An audience member spoke about the Master Contract negotiations 
between ECS and the Elkhart Teachers Association (ETA).  Both the 
administration and ETA bargaining teams have been working hard and 

 



6 
 

have a full day of negotiations planned for October 11.  In order to 
alleviate staffing shortages, she is hopeful ECS will be able to increase 

the beginning teacher’s salary to a level more competitive with 
neighboring districts. 

 
Mr. Mow reminded Board Members of their next Board Executive 
Session beginning at 5:30 p.m. followed by a Board Meeting at 7:00 

p.m. on October 24, 2023. 
 

From the 
Superintendent 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 7:40 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

 
  



7 
 

APPROVED: 
 

 
  ____________________________________ 

  Dacey S. Davis, President 
 

 
  ____________________________________ 

  Troy E. Scott, Vice President 
 

 
____________________________________ 

  Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 
 

 
____________________________________ 

  Jeffrey S. Bliler, Member 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Mike Burnett, Member 

 
 

____________________________________ 
  Kellie L. Mullins, Member 

 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Anne M. VonDerVellen, Member 

 

Signatures 

 
 



School Fundraising Activity Description/Purpose
Date(s) of 

Activity
Date 
Submitted Sponsor(s)

Elkhart High - 
Class of  2026

Students will sell tickets during lunch for the 
opportunity to pie a staff member during 
lunch in the cafeteria. Funds will go towards 
expenditures for the Class of 2026.

10/23/2023 - 
11/3/2023

10/11/2023 Linda Fine

Bristol 
Elementary - 
Student Council

Student Council members will sell lolli-grams 
to parents at parent-teacher conferences to 
send to their student. Funds will go towards 
student body activities. 

10/23/2023 - 
10/24/2023

10/10/2023 Nicole King

Elkhart Area 
Career Center - 
Culinary Arts 
Year 1

The class will sell take and bake pizzas. 
Proceeds will be used on uniforms, testing 
materials and other class needs. 

11/17/2023 10/9/2023 Peter Pica

West Side - 
National Junior 
Honor Society

NJHS will host a staff vs. student volleyball 
game with concessions open. Proceeds will 
be used to fund staff and student 
appreciation activities and school 
improvements. 

11/6/2023 9/19/2023 Tricia Davis

Please note the following fundraisers are 
presented for confirmation only.





















 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

  

 

 

 

To:   Mr. Mark Mow 

From:  Ms. Maggie Lozano 

Date:  October 24, 2023 

 

Personnel Recommendations 

 

CERTIFIED 

 

a. Administrative Appointment – The administration recommends confirmation of the following 

administrative appointment effective November 10, 2023: 

 

Jeremy Bechtel  Woodland/Principal 

 

b. New Certified Staff – We recommend the following new certified staff for employment in the 

2023-24 school year: 

 

Betsabe Rangel  Eastwood/Special Education 

c. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following employee: 

 

Heather Hall   West Side/Art 

Began:  8/15/11   Resign:  12/21/23 

 

Holly Hogan   Elkhart High/Science 

Began:  8/9/21   Resign:  11/9/23 

 

Elizabeth Peck   North Side/Math 

Began:  8/15/23   Resign:  10/13/23 

 

d. Extension of Leave – We recommend an extension to the leave for the following employee: 

 

Alexis Carroll-Troyer  Beck/Kindergarten 

Begin:  1/8/24   End:  5/31/24 

 

DeVetta Farrow  Pierre Moran/Assistant Principal 

Begin:  10/10/23  End:  12/15/23 

 

 

 

 



 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

CLASSIFIED 

 

a. New Hires – We recommend regular employment of the following classified employees: 

 

Mercedes Alvarez   Commissary/Food Service 

Began: 8/21/23    PE: 10/16/23 

 

Patricia Bloom    Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/28/23    PE: 10/23/23 

 

Elton Bock    Transportation/Bus Helper 

Began: 8/17/23    PE: 10/11/23 

 

David Davis    EACC/Technical Assistant 

Began: 8/28/23    PE: 10/23/23 

 

Carlene Duncan   Pierre Moran/Occupational Therapist 

Began: 8/21/23    PE: 10/16/23 

 

Cynthia Fletcher   Cleveland/Food Service 

Began: 8/17/23    PE: 10/11/23 

 

Cynthia Heiman   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/17/23    PE: 10/11/23 

 

Mark Henderson   Bristol/Food Service 

Began: 8/23/23    PE: 10/17/23 

 

Diamond Kelly    EACC/Technical Assistant 

Began: 8/28/23    PE: 10/23/23 

 

Riley Keppler    Riverview/SLPA 

Began: 8/24/23    PE: 10/18/23 

 

Shannon Kirkendoll   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/17/23    PE: 10/11/23 

 

Annette Lagadon   Commissary/Food Service 

Began: 8/29/23    PE: 10/23/23 

 

Theresa Lee    Pinewood/Food Service 

Began: 8/17/23    PE: 10/11/23 

 

Tiffany Love    Transportation/Bus Helper 

Began: 8/21/23    PE: 10/16/23 



 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

PAlysha McDaniel   North Side/Food Service 

Began: 8/17/23    PE: 10/11/23 

 

Dalida Mood    Pierre Moran/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/18/23    PE: 10/12/23 

 

Kashelia Pendleton-McClinton Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/17/23    PE: 10/11/23 

 

Lateena Pettis    North Side/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/29/23    PE: 10/23/23 

 

Doris Pratcher    Commissary/Food Service 

Began: 8/24/23    PE: 10/18/23 

 

Lesa Rohrer    Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/17/23    PE: 10/11/23 

 

Palmira Salazar   Pierre Moran/Secretary 

Began: 8/28/23    PE: 10/23/23 

 

Aillen Smart    Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/21/23    PE: 10/16/23 

 

Sandy Spencer    Transportation/Bus Helper 

Began: 8/21/23    PE: 10/16/23 

 

Brittany Stewart   North Side/Secretary 

Began: 8/17/23    PE: 10/11/23 

 

Ella Szymczak    Eastwood/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/22/23    PE: 10/16/23 

 

Charlena Thompson   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/25/23    PE: 10/19/23 

 

Eric Thompson   Beardsley/Food Service 

Began: 8/24/23    PE: 10/18/23 

 

Vickie Vinson    Transportation/Bus Helper 

Began: 8/17/23    PE: 10/11/23 

 

Patrick Walton   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/24/23    PE: 10/18/23 

 



 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Laura Witte    Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/17/23    PE: 10/11/23 

b. Revision - We recommend the revision of a resignation reported on the October 10, 2023 Board 

Report to a retirement for the following employee: 
 

Kevin Scott    ESC/Chief Financial Officer 

Began: 5/16/16    Retire: 3/29/24 

     YOS:  7 

 

c. Retirement – We report the retirement of the following classified employee:   

 

Lori Weaver    Catering/Food Service 

Began: 8/10/12    Retire: 1/2/24 

     YOS: 11 

 

d. Unpaid Leave – We recommend an unpaid leave for the following employees: 

 

Sharron Lewis    Transportation/Bus Driver 

Begin:  1/29/24    End:  3/1/24 

Maria Martinez   Monger/Technical Assistant 

Began:  10/12/23   End:  12/12/23 

 

e. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following classified employees:  

Paula Gluck    Riverview/Food Service 

Began: 8/10/20    Resign: 10/19/23 

 

Jessenia Macias-Flores   HELC/Secretary 

Began: 12/10/21   Resign: 10/30/23 

 

April McBride    Technology/Data Specialist 

Began: 12/13/21   Resign: 10/26/23 

 

Miranda Meese Exceptional Learners/Board Certified Behavior 

Analyst (BCBA)   

Began: 9/2/21    Resign: 11/3/23 

 

Lisa Rose    ESC/Substitute Teacher 

Began: 1/3/17    Resign: 12/21/23 

 

Bill Wooley    Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 9/20/21    Resign: 10/30/23 

 





 

 

 
 

Agreement for 
Elkhart Community School Corporation  

Branding, Positioning and Communications Services  
 

October 2023 
 
Elkhart Community Schools delivers excellent educational opportunities and options to students 
in Elkhart County but faces challenges in terms of perception and competition from other school 
districts, private schools and online education providers. To address these challenges, a well-
thought-out marketing and public relations strategy is essential.  
 

Objectives 

Big Idea Company will consult with Elkhart Community Schools with the following objectives: 
 

• Enhance Branding: Develop a strong and positive brand identity for Elkhart Community 
Schools highlighting strengths, achievements and commitment to quality education 

• Strategic Messaging: Craft clear, compelling and consistent messaging to community 
regarding the school system’s mission, values and unique selling points 

• Positioning: Position Elkhart Community Schools as the premier choice for quality 
education in the county, emphasizing its dedication to academic excellence, diversity and 
community engagement 

 

Strategy 

Big Idea Company will attend meetings, presentations, and guided work sessions to develop the 
following recommendations for Elkhart Community Schools: 
 

• Brand Development: Work closely with the school system leadership to create a 
compelling message that encapsulates Elkhart Community Schools’s mission, 
commitment to excellence and student-centered approach 

• Key Messages/Talking Points: Develop a set of key messages/talking points that address 
common questions and concerns from parents and the community, emphasizing the 
strengths of the school system 

• Logo and visual identity: Create a visual identity guideline to ensure consistency of logo 
usage across all materials (appropriate logo, color usage, etc.) This can be done at a 
corporate level and/or at each individual school 

• Marketing Collateral: Perform a rudimentary assessment of current marketing and 
communications materials and communication channels, understanding the challenges  
 



 

 
 

• and opportunities associated with each. Provide recommendations on ways to improve, 
streamline and provide consistency throughout materials 

• Media Training: Provide media training to key staff members, allowing them to effectively 
convey the school system’s message and handle media inquiries 

• Social Media Strategy: Provide guidance for social media engagement that showcases 
success stories, academic achievements, and community involvement to position Elkhart 
Community Schools 

• General Consulting:  Provide general consulting on communication and marketing as 
needed 

 

Budget 
 
Monthly retainer of $4,000.   
This includes all consulting and creative services as described in this proposal.  

 
Agreement 

Elkhart Community Schools will engage Big Idea Company for 12 months beginning November 1, 
2023. The agreement will be reviewed by both parties at 6 months (May 1, 2023).  At that time, 
mutually agreeable changes to this agreement can be made based upon work history and 
projections going forward.   
 
Big Idea Company will invoice Elkhart Community Schools for services on the first day of the 
month following each previous month of services.  We will bill a retainer of $4,000/month.                     
 
At this time, Big Idea Company projects no need for additional outside expenses.  If such 
expenses are deemed necessary in the course of doing business, Big Idea Company will itemize 
and seek approval for said expenses before incurring them on behalf of the client. 
 
 
 
Agreed:     Agreed: 
 
Melinda Pierce    Name: Mark Mow 
Vice President,     Title: Superintendent 
Big Idea Company, LLC   Org:  Elkhart Community Schools 
 
Date: __10/30/2023____________ Date:  _____________________________ 
 
 
 



INTERNAL MEMO 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      To:  Board of School Trustees 

 

  Mark T. Mow 

  Superintendent 

           

From:  Dr. Bruce Stahly 

  Assistant Superintendent of Instruction 

 

Date:  October 20, 2023 

 

     Re:  ULEAD Agreement 

 
I am recommending the ULEAD license agreement in your board packet be approved.  A 

contract with ULEAD for these services was signed last school year. I am quite sure this was 

done so planning could begin on the development of the course curriculum and allow for 

appropriate instructional training; both ULEAD and HEA then developed the course.  The State 

title of the course is Community Service (COMM SERV) and it was approved as a new course 

for Elkhart High School during the April 25, 2023 Board meeting.  It is a one semester course 

which currently has 31 students enrolled first semester and approximately 30 

students second semester.   

 

This course is designed for grade 10 students and meets graduation requirements.  A 

prerequisite of this course is high school athletic participation.  It is an experiential class 

designed to broaden a student's understanding of servant leadership and allows students to 

practice the skills necessary to become good servant leaders.  The curriculum is highly 

interactive and engages students as co-creators in learning as they are guided through 

sequenced activities requiring team interaction, problem-solving, mindfulness, and 

reflection.  

 

The original contract was a 3-year contract which included extensive training from LEAD 

instructional coaches for the EHS teacher.  The ULEAD agreement basically indicates at the 

end of the contract, Elkhart will have completed the training and have the appropriate 

materials for the course in place.  If additional training is needed, LEAD will provide such 

training and has included an approximate cost for this as well.   

 

BNS/cr 

 

 



























DLC 

 Proposed Revised Administrative Regulation 

 
 

EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENTS 

 

Section 1. Conference Leaves 

 

A. Conference Leave - a conference or professional development opportunity, not 

required by a specific grant, but providing an opportunity to further knowledge and 

skills directly related to Elkhart Community Schools’ (ECS) goals.  

1. A memo from the approving administrator should be submitted to the Board 

at least forty-five (45) days prior to the conference. This memo should 

include: the number of attendees, basic meeting/conference information, 

cost associated, funding source(s), and how this Conference Leave supports 

the Elkhart mission and aligns with ECS’ goals.  

2. A Conference Leave Request form should be completed and submitted for 

Board approval no later than three weeks prior to the conference.  Any 

exception to this timeline and procedure MUST be approved by the 

Superintendent.    

B. Conference Leave (Grant Required) - a conference required by a grant received 

by the school corporation as part of the expectations for maintaining the grant.  

1. A memo from the approving administrator should be submitted to the board 

at least thirty (30) days prior to the conference. This memo should include; 

basic meeting/conference information, cost associated, funding source(s), 

reason this Conference Leave is required to fulfill the expectations of the 

grant.  

2. A Conference Leave Request form should be completed and submitted for 

board approval no later than three weeks prior to the conference.  Any 

exception to this timeline and procedure MUST be approved by the 

Superintendent.  The Assistant Superintendent of Instruction will provide a 

copy of this memo to the Board. 

C. Request for Approval Process 

1. A  Conference Leave Request Memo shall be completed by the approving 

administrator and submitted to Assistant Superintendent of Instruction at 

least thirty (30) days prior for a conference leave request required by a 

grant and forty-five (45) days for all others. This memo should include 

information outlined above pertaining to the specific leave request.  

2. A Conference Leave Request form shall be completed and submitted to 

Instructional Leadership Department for Board approval  no later than 

three (3) weeks prior to the conference.  

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSe1y8D9eul23p-021mgP8wRhsyb78fGJit5rXVq-i2-qp-Ihg/viewform?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1rVarLwueGgRGjVJnQKi1xGq77gNXk8t9mGJ3g3YS7Lo/edit?usp=sharing


Page 2 DLC 

Expense Reimbursements Administrative Regulation 
 

3. After the Conference Leave, attending staff shall submit a Conference 

Sharing Report and Conference Leave Expense Report within five (5) 

workdays of the conference. Reimbursement will not be 

approved/received without the completion of this report.  

Section 12. Guidelines for Mileage Claims 

 

The following guidelines are to be used by employees filing for reimbursement of 

transportation expenses incurred in fulfilling their assignment of duties: 

 

A. Transportation expenses incurred to and from work on a direct route shall not be 

considered as a proper claim for mileage reimbursement; however, in the event 

school-related business or job-related responsibilities require a deviation from an 

employee's regular route to work, then it is proper to claim reimbursement for 

additional transportation expenses above and beyond those expenses incurred in the 

regular route to and from the place of work.  Example:  If an employee travels a total 

of 18 miles in visiting two schools on the way to work, and a direct route from home 

to work is 12 miles, the employee may claim mileage reimbursement for 6 miles. 

 

B. Transportation expenses incurred in returning to work in the evening or on Saturday 

to complete unfinished job requirements, except where such return is to attend a 

meeting, conference, or other required evening or weekend activity shall not be a 

claimable expense. 

 

C. The primary place of job responsibility is to be used to determine beginning and 

ending points in computing total mileage traveled during the regular work day. 

 

D. When departing from the employee's residence for the purpose of attending evening 

or Saturday meetings, conferences or other required activity within the Elkhart 

Community Schools corporation boundaries, the employee's residence is to be used to 

determine beginning and ending points in computing total mileage traveled (no more 

than 20 miles may be claimed when using the employee's residence in computing 

mileage). 

 

E. In determining whether or not mileage can be claimed when attending extra or 

co-curricular activities, mileage can be claimed when the employee attends for the 

purpose of direct work responsibility. 

 

F. To claim mileage, the activity attended must be related to the employee's position 

description, or be an express direction or requirement of the employee's supervisor. 

 

G. The appropriate information is to be transferred to official Claim Form 101 and filed 

in the Business Office on the first of each month.  Claim Form 101 is obtainable from 

the Business Office. 

 

H. Questions concerning interpretation of this regulation are to be directed to the 

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLScWuXKu5usf2BlrWUdskpUcu24YIIDEMcNi-Is8pwa6CpDysg/viewform
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLScWuXKu5usf2BlrWUdskpUcu24YIIDEMcNi-Is8pwa6CpDysg/viewform


Page 3 DLC 

Expense Reimbursements Administrative Regulation 
 

Executive Director of Support Services Chief Financial Officer. 

 

I. Mileage claims are not to be confused with conference attendance claims.  Each 

employee's must have the Deputy Superintendent’s Assistant Superintendent of 

Instruction’s or, when applicable, the Director of the Elkhart Area Career Center’s 

approval for conference attendance prior to such attendance.  Only the immediate 

supervisor's approval is needed for administrative/professional assignments and prior 

approval of other claimable transportation expenses is not necessary. 

 

J. Administrative Regulation DLC (Mileage Chart) shall be used in determining 

distance between particular buildings in the school corporation except that no mileage 

between buildings shall be considered to be less than one mile. 
 

 

 

 

 

 December 20, 2016October 24, 2023 



















CASH:

     Petty Cash                                          500.00$                

BANK ACCOUNTS:

     Everwise Credit Union                                                        2,999,023.45$      
     Lake City Bank – Accounts Payable (3,326,155.99)       
     Lake City Bank – Payroll Account                                      (618,031.64)          
     Lake City Bank – Flex Account                                          73,611.06             
     Lake City Bank – Merchant Account                                  -                        
     Lake City Bank – Prepaid Lunch                                        735,079.51           
     Lake City Bank – Deposit Account 34,914,113.82      
     Lake City Bank – Book Rental -                        

INVESTMENTS:

     Certificate of Deposit  -                        
                                                                                                                            

ACCOUNT BALANCES/INVESTMENT DETAIL
September 2023

34,778,140.21$       



Total Expenditures as 
of October 2023

Total % of Allocation 
Expended

Account Budget % of Total Budget

$1,645,760.30 97.82% Instruction - Regular Programs $1,682,429.00 14.31%

$167,851.92 61.08% Instruction - Special Programs $274,801.00 2.34%

$453,611.14 100.53% Instruction - Summer School Programs $451,209.00 3.84%

$203,646.05 94.54% Instruction - Remediation Programs $215,418.00 1.83%

$284,990.03 82.35% Support Services-Students $346,073.00 2.94%

$843,006.10 91.71% Support Services-Instruction $919,242.89 7.82%

$105,683.07 97.94% Support Services-General Admin $107,910.00 0.92%

$123,515.71 100.00% Student Transportation $123,516.00 1.05%

$314,121.54 100.49% Community Service Operations $312,592.00 2.66%

$7,218,391.50 104.86% Facilities Acquisition and Construction $6,883,650.00 58.55%

$395,922.53 90.05%
Non Programmed Charges/Transfer

$439,659.00 3.74%
11,756,499.89 100.00% $11,756,499.89 100.00%

ESSER II - Utilization Review

     Expenditures for October 2023 consisted of Indirect Costs approved through the grant.



1,645,760

167,852 453,611 203,646 284,990

843,006

105,683 123,516 314,122

7,218,392

395,923

1,682,429

274,801 451,209 215,418 346,073
919,243

107,910 123,516 312,592

6,883,650

439,659

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

7,000,000

8,000,000

ESSER II - Expenditure to Budget as of 10/10/23

Total Expenditures as of October 2023

Budget



YTD Expenditures as of 
September 2023

Total % of Allocation 
Expended

Account Budget
% of Total 

Budget

3,239,052.80 69.16% Instruction - Regular Programs $4,683,726.72 17.74%

589,994.91 150.24% Instruction - Special Programs $392,690.00 1.49%

36,426.94 100.42%
Instruction - Adult/Continuing 

Ed Programs $36,274.00 0.14%

627,756.42 44.88% Programs $1,398,625.00 5.30%

438,537.68 28.58%
Instruction - Remediation 

Programs $1,534,501.00 5.81%

1,142,099.06 51.26% Support Services Students 2,228,127.00 8.44%

4,385,682.52 80.50% Support Services - Instruction 5,448,285.00 20.63%

160,663.56 39.65% Admin 405,203.00 1.53%

514,259.93 14.46% Operations and Maintainance 3,555,243.00 13.47%

462,817.90 50.77% Student Transportation 911,601.00 3.45%

360,580.18 37.61% Community Service Operations 958,804.00 3.63%

2,436,583.71 96.47% Construction $2,525,707.00 9.57%

720,593.99 31.00% Transfer $2,324,642.00 8.80%
$15,115,049.60 57.25% $26,403,428.72 100.00%

ESSER III - Utilization Review

Expenditures for September 2023 consisted of salaries/benefits, professional development, and supplies for budgeted programming.



3,239,053

589,995

36,427

627,756

438,538

1,142,099

4,385,683

160,664

514,260 462,818
360,580

2,436,584

720,594

4,683,727

392,690

36,274

1,398,625
1,534,501

2,228,127

5,448,285

405,203

3,555,243

911,601 958,804

2,525,707

2,324,642

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

ESSER III - Expenditure to Budget as of 9/30/2023

YTD Expenditures as of September 2023

Budget




	2023.10.24 Notice of Work Session Cancellation
	2023.10.24 Notice of Executive Session
	Agenda - October 24, 2023
	2023.10.10 Minutes - Work Session
	2023.10.10 Minutes - Regular Meeting
	Fundraisers 10.24.23
	Donation A White 10.24.23
	Donation G Roberts 10.24.23
	Donation EACC 10.24.23
	Conference Leave Requests 10.24.23
	Overnight Trip Requests 10.24.23
	Grant Approval Request 10.24.23
	Personnel Report 10.24.23
	Employment Memo2 10.24.23
	AGREEMENT for ECS and BIC
	2023.10.20 ULead Agmt Memo to BST
	ULEAD License Agreement
	2023.10.24 Administrative Regulation DLC
	Budget Adoption 2024
	Financials 101924
	Financial Report (17)
	FR Monthly Balance Sheet
	Financials
	Summary of Receipts and Expenditures as of 09-30-2023

	ESSER II, Utilization Review, as of 10-10-23
	ESSER II, Expenditure to Budget, 10-10-23
	ESSER III, Utilization Review, as of 9-30-23
	ESSER III, Expenditure to Budget, 9-30-23

	Insurance Report 10.24.23



